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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
SHERMAN DIVISION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISION,

Plaintiff,
VS. CIVIL ACTION NO.: 4:12-CV-419

ORTHOFIX INTERNATIONAL N.V.,

Defendant.

wn W W W W W W W W W W W

FINAL JUDGMENT ASTO
DEFENDANT ORTHOFIX INTERNATIONAL N.V.

Plaintiff, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and
Orthofix International N.V. (“Defendant” or “Orthofix”) having entered a general appearance;
consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of this action;
consented to entry of this Final Judgment; waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; and
waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment:

.

IT ISHEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and
Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or
otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section
13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 8 78m(b)(2)(A)] by failing to make and keep books,
records, and accounts, which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the issuer.
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1.

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and
Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or
otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section
13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)] by failing to devise and maintain a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that: (i)
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization; (ii)
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles or any other criteria applicable to such statements,
and to maintain accountability for assets; (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance
with management’s general or specific authorizations; and (iv) the recorded accountability for
assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken
with respect to any differences.

1.

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable
for disgorgement of $4,983,644, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in
the Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $242,057 for a total
of $5,225,701. Defendant shall satisfy this obligation by paying $5,225,701 within 14 days after
entry of this Final Judgment by certified check, bank cashier’s check, wire transfer, or United
States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission. The payment
shall be delivered or mailed to the Office of Financial Management, Security and Exchange

Commission, Operations Center, 6432 General Green Way, Mail Stop 0-3, Alexandria, Virginia
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22312, and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying Orthofix International N.V. as a
defendant in this action; setting forth the title and civil action number of this action and the name
of this Court; and specifying that payment is made pursuant to this Final Judgment. Defendant
shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of the payment of disgorgement and prejudgment
interest to the Commission’s counsel in this action. Defendant shall pay post-judgment interest
on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1961. The Commission shall remit the funds
paid pursuant to this paragraph to the United States Treasury.

V.

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is
incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant
shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein, including but not
limited to, Orthofix’s agreement to report to the Commission staff, periodically at no less than
six-month intervals, during a two-year term, the status of Defendant’s remediation and
implementation of compliance measures. Should Orthofix discover credible evidence, not
already reported to the Commission staff, that questionable or corrupt payments or questionable
or corrupt transfers of property or interests may have been offered, promised, paid, or authorized
by any Orthofix entity or person, or any entity or person working directly for Orthofix, or that
related false books and records have been maintained, Orthofix shall promptly report such
conduct to the Commission staff. During this two-year period, Orthofix shall: (1) conduct an
initial review and submit an initial report, and (2) conduct and prepare follow-up reviews and
reports, as described below:

a. Orthofix shall submit to the Commission staff a written report within 180

calendar days of the signing of this agreement setting forth a complete description of its
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remediation efforts to date, its proposal reasonably designed to improve the policies and
procedures of Orthofix for ensuring compliance with the FCPA and other applicable anti-
corruption laws, and the parameters of the subsequent reviews. The report shall be transmitted to
Kara Brockmeyer, Unit Chief, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Unit, Enforcement Division, U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission, 100 F. Street NE, Washington DC, 20549-5030. The
Commission staff may, upon written request of Orthofix and for good cause shown, approve an
extension of the time period for issuance of the report.

b. Orthofix shall undertake two follow-up reviews, incorporating any
comments provided by the Commission staff on Orthofix’s initial review and report, to further
monitor and assess whether the policies and procedures of Orthofix are reasonably designed to
detect and prevent violations of the FCPA and other applicable anti-corruption laws.

C. the first follow-up review and report shall be completed by 180 days after
the initial review. A subsequent follow-up review and report shall be completed by 180 days
after the completion of the preceding follow-up review.

d. The Commission staff may, upon written request of Orthofix and for good
cause shown, approve an extension of the time period for issuance of the report.

Orthofix shall certify, in writing, compliance with the undertakings set forth above. The
certification shall identity the undertakings, provide written evidence of compliance in the form
of a narrative, and be supported by exhibits sufficient to demonstrate compliance. The
Commission staff may make reasonable requests for further evidence of compliance, and
Orthofix agrees to provide such evidence. The certification and supporting materials shall be

submitted to Kara Brockmeyer, Unit Chief, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Unit, Enforcement
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Division, with a copy to the Office of Chief Counsel of the Enforcement Division, no later than
sixty (60) days from the date of the completion of the undertakings.
VI.
IT ISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall
retain jurisdiction of this action for all purposes, including, without limitation, the

implementation and enforcement of the terms of this Final Judgment.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

SHERMAN DIVISION
§
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE §
COMMISION, §
§
Plaintiff, §
§
VSs. § CIVIL ACTION NO.: 4:12-cv-419
§
ORTHOFIX INTERNATIONAL N.V.,  §
§
Defendant. §
§

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT ORTHOFIX INTERNATIONAL N.V.

1. Defendant Orthofix International N.V. (“Defendant” or “Orthofix”) waives
service of a summons and the complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and consents
to the Court’s jurisdiction over Defendant and over the subject matter of this action.

2. Defendant has entered into a deferred-prosecution agreement (“DPA”) with the
United States Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section, in which it admits, and
accepts and acknowledges responsibility for conduct relating to certain matters alleged in the
complaint in this action. This Consent shall remain in full force and effect regardless of the
existence or outcome of any further proceedings in the DPA.

3. Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the Final Judgment in the form attached
hereto (the “Final Judgment™) and incorporates by reference herein, which, among other things:

a. permanently restraints and enjoins Defendant from violations of Sections

13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”);
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b. orders Defendant to pay disgorgement in the amount of $4,983,644 plus
pre-judgment interest thereon in the amount of $242,057, for a total of $5,225,701; and

C. orders Defendant to submit periodic reports to the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) as described in paragraph 5 of this Consent.

4. Defendant agrees to pay $5,225,701 by certified check, bank cashier’s check, wire
transfer, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 14 days of entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant agrees that if it fails to
make the payment by the date agreed and/or in the amount agreed, all outstanding payments
under the Final Judgment, including post-judgment interest, minus any payments made, shall
become due and payable immediately without further application to the Court.

5. Defendant undertakes to periodically, at no less than six-month intervals, during a
two-year term to report to the Commission staff on the status of Defendant’s remediation and /
implementation of compliance measures. Should Orthofix discover credible evidence, not
already reported to the Commission staff, that questionable or corrupt payments or questionable
or corrupt transfers of property or interests may have been offered, promised, paid, or authorized
by any Orthofix entity or person, or any entity or person working directly for Orthofix, or that
related false books and record have been maintained, Orthofix shall promptly report such
conduct to the Commission staff. During this two-year period, Orthofix shall: (i) conduct an
initial review and submit an initial report, and (ii) conduct and prepare follow-up reviews and
reports, as described below:

a. Orthofix shall submit to the Commission staff a written report within 180
calendar days of the signing of this agreement setting forth a complete description of its

remediation efforts to date, its proposals reasonably designed to improve the policies and
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procedures of Orthofix for ensuring compliance with the FCPA and other applicable anti-
corruption laws, and the parameters of the subsequent reviews. The report shall be transmitted to
Kara Brockmeyer, Unit Chief, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Unit, Enforcement Division, U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission, 100 F. Street NE, Washington DC, 20549-5030. The
Commission staff may, upon written request of Orthofix and for good cause shown, approve an
extension of the time period for issuance of the report.

b. Orthofix shall undertake two follow-up reviews, incorporating any
comments provided by the Commission staff on Orthofix’s initial review and report, to further
monitor and assess whether the policies and procedures of Orthofix are reasonably designed to
detect and prevent violations of the FCPA and other applicable anti-corruption laws.

C. The first follow-up review and report shall be completed by 180 days after
the initial review. A subsequent follow-up review and report shall be completed by 180 days
after the completion of the preceding follow-up review.

d. The Commission staff may, upon written request of Orthofix and for good
cause shown, approve an extension of the time period for issuance of the report.

6. Orthofix shall certify, in writing, compliance with the undertakings set forth
above. The certification shall identify the undertakings, provide written evidence of compliance
in the form of a narrative, and be supported by exhibits sufficient to demonstrate compliance.
The Commission staff may niake reasonable requests for further evidence of compliance, and
Orthofix agrees to provide such evidence. The certification and supporting material shall be
submitted to Kara Brockmeyer, Unit Chief, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Unit, Enforcement
Division, with a copy to the Office of the Chief Counsel of the Enforcement Division, no later .

than sixty (60) days from the date of the completion of the undertakings.
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7. Defendant waives the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to
Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

8. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal from the entry of
Final Judgment.

9. Defendant enters into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats,
offers, promises, or inducements of any kind have been made by the Commission or any
member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to
enter into this Consent.

10.  Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Final Judgment
with the same force and effect as if fully set forth therein.

11.  Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground,
if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and
hereby waives any objection based thereon. |

12. Defendant waives service of the Final Judgment and agrees that entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant
of its terms and conditions. Defendant further agrees to provide counsel for the Commission,
within thirty days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the Court, with an affidavit
or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Final Judgment.

13.  Consistent with 17 C.F.R. 202.5(f), this Consent resolves only the claims asserted
against Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or
representation has been made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or
representative of the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or

may arise from the facts undérlying this action or immunity from any such criminal liability.
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Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceeding,
including the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant further acknowledges
that the Court’s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under féderal
or state law and the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and -
other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a
statutory disqualification with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a
member of a self-regulatory organization. This statutory disqualification has consequences that |
are separate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any
disciplinary prokceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction in this
action, Defendant understands that it shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of
the complaint in this action.

14.  Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the Commission’s policy “not
to permit a defendant or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction
while denying the allegations in the complaint or order for proceedings.” 17 C.F.R. § 202.5. In
compliance with this policy, Defendant acknowledges the deferred-prosecution agreement for
related criminal conduct described in paragraph 2 above, and agrees: (i) not to take any action or
to make or permit to be made any public statement denying, directly or indirectly, any allegétion
in the complaint or creating the impression that the complaint is without factual basis; and (ii)
that upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in this action
to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint. If Defendant breaches this
agreement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this

action to its active docket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant’s: (i) testimonial
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obligation; or (ii) right to take legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings in
which the Commission is not a party.

15.  Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the
Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to
seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in his or
her official capacity, directly or indirectly, reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees,
expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes,
Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this action since the parties have
reaches a good faith settlement.

16.  Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the
court for signature and entry without further notice.

17.  Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the

purposes of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment.

Dated: A’Q -l 8 / Lol Oﬁhoﬁx International, N.V.

On g;@ , £ g9 ,2012, , a person known to me, personally
appeared before me and ackn xecutmg the foregomg Consent w1th full authority to do

so on behalf of Orthofix International N.V. as its

CansticT)°
Notary Public
Commission expires:

7% NDICE MCENANEY
T Notgrg Public, State of Texas
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Approved as to form:

Peter Spivack

Hogan Lovells U.S., LLP
Columbia Square

555 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20004

Outside Counsel for Orthofix International N.V.
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